1985

Kenton W. Stephens v. Sharon S. Stephens : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

The issues presented by this Appeal are:

1. That the Court abused its discretion by awarding to the Respondent \$400.00 a month alimony and upon retirement of the Appellant, that the \$400.00 shall represent Respondent's share in the retirement of the Appellant from his employment at Morton-Thiokol and previously at Sperry-Rand, which constituted pure speculation on the part of the Court as to what the Plaintiff's retirement may or may not be.

2. That the award of \$400.00 a month alimony to the Respondent, who is gainfully employed and has a substantial income, to be paid alimony in the sum of \$400.00 a month and

not abating until the Appellant shall have retired or died was an abuse of discretion, in that both parties are relatively young, in good health and each of the parties has permanent employment with substantial income.

3. That the Court abused its discretion in requiring the Appellant to be responsible for one-half (1/2) of the necessary expenditures for capital improvements of the home, where the Respondent has the sole occupancy of the home, has more than a 50% interest in the equity upon sale of the home and can allow the home to become in disrepair and deteriorate with the Appellant being called upon to pay one-half (1/2) of said improvements as shall be determined by the Respondent necessary for the maintenance of the home.

4. That the Court abused its discretion by failing to grant to the Appellant interest to be paid by the Respondent to the Appellant on the Appellant's equity in the home; by awarding the first \$8,500.00 on the sale of the home to the Respondent; and decreeing division of the remaining equity on a 50/50 basis, or in the alternative, by not requiring a sale of the home, which is the only major asset in which the Appellant has been allowed to have an interest, accumulated in the marriage, and not requiring the home to be sold so that each of the parties could afford to purchase a home.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a case wherein the Plaintiff and Appellant brought an action for divorce as against the Defendant and Respondent, with the Court awarding a Decree of Divorce to both of the parties, and the Lower Court made a division of the assets, together with a division of the retirement funds of the Appellant in a manner from which an Appeal has been made to the Supreme Court of the State of Utah, seeking a modification and reversal of the Lower Courts Judgment and Decree of Divorce.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The parties were intermarried on July 27, 1968 and there was born as the issue of the marriage two (2) children, Gregory Scott, born November 11, 1971 and Kenna Suzanne, born November 19, 1973. (TR 4)

That subsequent to the marriage of the parties, the Appellant adopted Respondent's son, who at the time of the Decree of Divorce was emancipated. (TR 4)

The Court ordered the Appellant to pay to the Respondent \$225.00 per month per child; made a division of the personal property of the parties; and awarded to each of the parties property possessed prior to the marriage or received from their respective family estates by inheritance. (R 80-83)

The Court awarded to the Respondent 9/13 of one-half (1/2) of Appellant's retirement benefits from his previous employment at Sperry-Rand, and awarded to the Respondent one-half (1/2) of Appellant's Morton-Thiokol retirement benefits as and when received, multiplied by the fraction of 7, divided by the total number of Plaintiff's working years for Morton-Thiokol. (R 83)

The Court then further made an award "that Plaintiff (Appellant) shall pay to the Defendant (Respondent) as and for alimony until the remarriage of Defendant (Respondent), or his property eligibility retirement from Morton-Thiokol Corporation, the sum of \$400.00 per month, said alimony shall terminate upon the death of each party." (R 84)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The Respondent having not requested nor prayed for alimony; being gainfully employed and having an income of \$1,057.00 a month; having been awarded a savings account with a balance in excess of \$11,000.00; having been awarded \$400.00 a month alimony, together with child support in accordance with the Uniform Child Support Schedule of \$225.00 monthly per child, and the Court ordering the continuation of the \$400.00 a month alimony as being representative of Respondent's share of Appellant's retirement fund from Sperry-Rand and also from Morton-Thiokol, where he

has been employed only seven (7) years, is a clear abuse of discretion and contrary to the previously established case law of the Supreme Court of the State of Utah.

2. The awarding of \$400.00 a month alimony to a spouse who is gainfully employed with a substantial income and opportunity for advancement in her employment, and where the spouse has no physical disabilities evidenced in any manner before the Court, is 43 years of age, and such alimony to continue until the death of the Appellant, who is 46 years of age, is an abuse of discretion.

3. The award to the Respondent of one-half (1/2) of the equity of the home, together with the possessory rights to said home and requiring the Appellant to pay 50% of all capital improvements and maintenance of the home is an abuse of discretion of the Court.

4. The awarding of the equity of a home wherein there is an equity to be divided of \$63,000.00 and which constitutes the only major asset of the marriage allowed to be divided between the parties, without requiring the Respondent to pay interest to the Appellant on Appellant's equity in the home, while at the same time, award to the Respondent of a share in the retirement of Appellant's previous employment is being enhanced as to the share to the Respondent by

the accumulation of interest and earnings of the retirement of Sperry-Rand, the previous employer of the Appellant, and the continued enhancement of the share of the Respondent's interest in Appellant's future retirement from his present employer of Morton-Thiokol being enhanced by the continued employment of the Appellant, is not equitable and is an abuse of discretion of the Court.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE AWARD OF \$400.00 MONTHLY UPON RETIREMENT OF APPELLANT
IS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION

The Decree and Judgment of the Lower Court wherein the Court ordered the Appellant to pay to the Respondent the sum of \$400.00 a month to terminate upon the death of either party is directly contrary to the holding of this Court in Woodward vs. Woodward, 656 P.2d 431 (Utah 1982), (R 90) in that the Court has presumptuously assumed that the Respondent's right to participate in 9/13 of the Appellant's employment at Sperry-Rand Corporation, and the current seven (7) years that the Appellant has been employed at Morton-Thiokol (R 79) will, upon his retirement, entitle the Respondent to a share of the Appellant's retirement in the sum of not less than \$800.00 a month or such greater sum as will entitle the Respondent to the fixed sum of \$400.00

monthly and also totally disregards the retirement of the Respondent who is also employed at Morton-Thiokol. (TR 78)

The Court in Woodward vs. Woodward, supra, held that the wife was entitled to share in that portion of the benefits to which the rights accrued during the marriage and established a formula for distribution of such retirement benefits, where they cannot be ascertained with certainty at the time of the divorce proceedings. The Appellant having been employed for only seven (7) years now at the time of the divorce of the parties and no where near having eligibility for retirement from Thiokol, there can be no determination whatsoever as of the time of the Decree of Divorce of what the Appellant's retirement benefits will be from Morton-Thiokol, and there is nothing in the record before the Court that would give a formula for the amount of the retirement, which the Appellant will have from his previous employment at Sperry-Rand upon his reaching the age of retirement.

It is submitted that the Court in Woodward vs. Woodward, supra, held that pension retirement benefits are a form of deferred compensation by the employer to which the Respondent would have a right to participation, but that compensation cannot be set by the Court at \$400.00 a month

without any basis of accounting or accountability as to what the retirement pension of the Appellant will be at the time of his retirement.

The Court in Woodward vs. Woodward, supra, stated:

Whether that resource is subject to distribution, does not turn on whether the spouse can presently use or control it, or on whether the resource can be given a present dollar value. The essential criterion is whether a right to the benefit or asset has accrued in whole or in part during the marriage. To the extent that the right has so accrued, it is subject to equitable distribution.

POINT TWO

AWARD TO EMPLOYED SPOUSE OF \$400.00 MONTHLY ALIMONY FOR LIFE IS ABUSE OF DISCRETION

The Respondent, being gainfully employed at Morton-Thiokol, and earning \$1,057.37 monthly (TR 78); has not made any allegations of any health problems in any part of the record before the Court, and both the Respondent and the Appellant are in their forties, it is submitted that it is an abuse of discretion of the Court in making an alimony award of \$400.00 monthly to continue until either of the parties has become demised. (R 85)

In Warren vs. Warren, 655 P.2d 684, (Utah 1982), this Court established a criteria in determining the alimony and

support to be awarded as between a husband and wife, and established the following factors to be considered in making a determination:

1. The amount and kind of property owed by each of the parties.
2. Whether the property was the husbands before coverture or accumulated jointly.
3. The ability and opportunity of each to earn money.
4. The financial condition and necessities of each party.
5. The health of the parties.
6. The standard of living of the parties.
7. The duration of the marriage.
8. What the wife gave up by the marriage (was her economic status better or worse because of the marriage).
9. What age were they when married.

In the instant matter before the Court, at the time of the marriage, the Respondent brought into the marriage \$18,000.00, (R 2) while the Appellant brought into the marriage \$14,500.00.

During the marriage, the Appellant has used up all of the \$14,500.00 he had during the marriage, is driving a 1969

motor vehicle and has no savings account, while the Respondent has a savings account in excess of \$11,000.00 and has continuously, during her employment at Morton-Thiokol, applied \$70.00 a pay day to a savings account.

That both of the parties are gainfully employed, being both employed at Morton-Thiokol, and being both in the mid forties, with each of the parties being in good health.

The Respondent has been awarded the home, with the Appellant being awarded one-half (1/2) of the equity in the home, subject to an additional sum of \$8,500.00 being awarded to the Respondent, which will be discussed more fully in Point Four, infra. The youngest child is nine (9) years of age, and the Respondent has been awarded, by the Decree, the sum of \$225.00 monthly per child, giving her an additional income of \$450.00, which together with the income to Respondent from her employment of \$1,057.00 a month; \$400.00 a month alimony; interest from her \$11,000.00 savings, plus the \$140.00 a month payroll deduction being saved by Respondent in addition thereto from her employment at Morton-Thiokol, and the awarding of the home to Respondent, with no interest or equity to the Appellant until the youngest child has reached the age of eighteen (the child now being nine years of age), and with the monthly payment on the home to

be borne by Respondent at \$186.00 a month, (TR 69) constitutes a significant high standard of living, substantially in excess of the style of living that the Respondent enjoyed prior to the divorce and award of the Court.

While the duration of the marriage has been for sixteen (16) years, the Respondent's previous spouse had become demised, and the Appellant has furnished a home and full support of the entire household, including that of the Respondent's son, who was adopted by the Appellant following the marriage of the parties.

It is further submitted to the Court that in determining the current standard of living an examination of the alleged expenses of the Respondent were set forth on a Order to Show Cause filed with the Lower Court on February 15, 1984, alleging therein utilities of water, lights, garbage and heat at \$120.00 a month; house payments of \$200.00 a month, (which in fact is \$186.00) and have not been increased (TR 68-69); dentist of \$20.00 a month whereas the medical plan at Thiokol provides for only a \$50.00 deductible per year for medical services, which would make the cost of dental care at approximately \$4.25 a month rather than \$20.00 a month; drugs and vitamins listed at \$40.00 a month, even though the Respondent testified that she and the

children are usually quite healthy; (TR 69) car expense and repairs and upkeep at \$125.00 a month; food for the Respondent and two (2) minor children of \$500.00 a month, which was explained in the following dialogue:

Q: Wouldn't you say \$500.00 is a little bit ridiculous for food for three (3) people under those circumstances?

A: Well, where do we count in ***we have to count other people who join us for meals as miscellaneous?

Q: Does your husband have an obligation to support other people who appear miscellaneously?

Clothing is claimed to be \$100.00 a month and recreation \$100.00 a month as well as other expenses \$100.00 a month for a total allegation of possible expenses as set forth in the Show Cause Order of \$1,305.00 a month.

It is submitted that the maximum possible expenses of the Respondent would be more realistic at \$800.00 a month rather than \$1,305.00 a month as and for her total living costs, including the home payments, utilities and all other items set forth in the schedule at R 21.

POINT THREE

REQUIRING APPELLANT TO PAY ONE-HALF (1/2) OF CAPITAL REPAIRS TO HOME IS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION

The Court in its Decree of Divorce ordered:

"The Defendant (Respondent), during her occupancy, is to maintain the home property, except for necessary expenditures for capital improvements agreed upon by the parties or necessitated by ordinary wear or depletion, which improvements shall be paid one-half (1/2) by each party." (R 89)

It is submitted to the Court that awarding the possession of the home to the Respondent and imposing upon the Appellant the responsibility to pay one-half (1/2) of the capital improvements for ordinary wear or depletion resulting from the use of the home by the Respondent, is an abuse of discretion and is unconscionable, since the Appellant has no control over the manner in which the Respondent uses and maintains the home, and that there being a total monthly payment on the home of \$186.00, with possession of the home given to the Respondent, should impose a duty of proper care and maintenance of the home.

It was mutually agreed between the parties to this cause of action that the home has a value of \$80,000.00, (TR 11) and it is submitted to the Court that ordinarily the rental use of the home of that value would be between \$500.00 and \$600.00 a month, whereas the actual amount to be paid by the Respondent is only \$186.00 monthly for the principal and interest in acquisition of ownership of the home.

The payment of such a nominal rent as the purchase price, together with a substantial benefits awarded to the Respondent by the Court to be paid by Appellant, constitutes an abuse of discretion of the Court to compel the Appellant, not a resident of the premises, nor the party who will ultimately become the owner of the premises, to pay one-half (1/2) of the costs of capital improvements and maintenance to prevent the premises from going into disrepair.

POINT FOUR

FAILURE OF THE COURT TO AWARD INTEREST ON THE HOME EQUITY TO APPELLANT AND ALLOWING CREDIT TO RESPONDENT OF FUTURE MONTHLY INSTALLMENTS FOR AN UNKNOWN PERIOD AS A FIRST DEDUCTION UPON SALE OF THE HOME CONSTITUTES AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION

The Court, in its Decree of Divorce, awarded to the Respondent, not only the right to the use and enjoyment of the home, subject to the usual conditions for payment of the equity of the Appellant to be vested and paid, but awarded as follows:

"Upon termination of Defendant's right to live in the home, the proceeds from the home shall be divided as follows: \$8,500.00 to the Defendant, an amount by which the present mortgage of \$17,000.00 is reduced at the time of the sale to the Defendant, the remainder of the net proceeds from the sale of the home to be

divided one-half (1/2) to each of the parties." (R 89)

It is submitted to this Court that in the first instance, the \$8,500.00 specifically awarded to the Respondent (Defendant), contemplates that none of the other provisions which require payment to the Appellant of his equity in the home will occur, except only upon the youngest child reaching the age of emancipation. It is submitted to this Court that it is difficult to be so clairvoyant and presume that in a period of nine (9) years, the Respondent will not remarry, will not move or put the home up for sale, or will not cohabitate with another person, all of which would accelerate the requirement to pay to the Appellant his equity in the home.

In addition to this totally inequitable award to the Respondent, the Court has further decreed, as has been set forth hereinabove, that the Appellant shall pay one-half (1/2) of the capital improvements and maintenance of the home, during the period of time that the Respondent shall be in possession of said home and prior to its vesting, and also denied to the Appellant the petition of Appellant to be paid interest on his equity of \$34,000.00 in the home during the period that the Respondent shall be in possession of the home and prior to the sale of the home, which deprives the

Appellant of any opportunity to restart his life with the use of the equity which he has in the home and is the only major asset which the Court has not awarded to the Respondent.

In Pope vs. Pope, 589 P.2d 752 (Utah 1978), the Court held at § 15-1-4 Utah Code Annotated as amended 1953, requires Judgments to bear interest at 8% per annum, and that the Court should have invoked also Section 30-3-5, which authorized the Court to make such orders in relation to the property of the parties as may be applicable.

CONCLUSION