1985

Kenton W. Stephens v. Sharon S. Stephens : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The Defendant-Respondent both requested and prayed for alimony in the proceeding herein and taking into consideration the current status of the law with respect to alimony awards, if there is any abuse of discretion with respect to the award herein of the \$ 400.00 per month alimony, that discretion was abused in failing to give Defendant-Respondent a greater award.

2. Respondent requested that the award of alimony continue until she receives her proportionate share of Appellant's pension as ordered by the Court which order of the Court is clearly within its discretion and supported by the facts.

3. Viewing the award of one-half of the equity in the home and requiring Appellant to pay one-half of capital improvements is clearly supported by the evidence favorable to the Defendant-Respondent and is within the discretion of the Court and not an abuse thereof.

4. The refusal of the trial court to award the Plaintiff-Appellant interest on his equity in the home was an appropriate conclusion of law on the part of the Court and not an abuse of discretion.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE ONE: WHETHER THE AWARD OF A PORTION OF THE RETIREMENT WAS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION ON THE PART OF THE COURT.

Plaintiff-Appellant misconstrues the decision of the court in its award of alimony and a proportionate share of the retirement of the Plaintiff upon his retirement from Morton Thiokol Corporation. The intent of the decree and findings of the court was that the \$ 400.00 per month alimony be terminated upon Defendant-Respondent's receiving her proportionate share of the retirement awarded by the court.

Defendant-Respondent would suggest to the Court that the award as stated by the Court is in conformance with Woodward v. Woodward, 656 P 2nd 431 (Utah, 1982).

Therefore, Defendant-Respondent urges the Court to allow the proportion of the Plaintiff-Appellant's retirement awarded to Defendant-Respondent to stand.

ISSUE TWO: WHETHER THE \$ 400.00 PER MONTH ALIMONY AWARD TO DEFENDANT-RESPONDENT WAS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION.

Under the most recent decision of the Utah Supreme Court, Jones v. Jones, decided in April of this year as Case No. 18733, three standards are to be utilized in determining an alimony award. First, the financial conditions and needs of the wife are to be considered.

Secondly, the ability of the wife to produce a sufficient income for herself is to be considered. Thirdly, the capacity of the husband to provide support is to be taken into consideration. Based upon these criteria, it would appear that the abuse of discretion of the Court if any was in failing to award a greater monthly amount as and for alimony, therefore, it would not seem inappropriate that the award should be terminated only upon the death of a party or the remarriage of the Defendant-Respondent.

By way of comparison, the Utah Supreme Court in Ridge v. Ridge, 542 P 2nd 189 (1975) determined that a \$ 625.00 per month alimony was not inappropriate on a \$ 32,000.00 per year income nor that a \$ 500.00 per month alimony was not inappropriate for a \$ 20,000.00 per year income.

A review of the record as a whole reflects the short time period within which the Defendant-Respondent has been employed by Morton Thiokol which to this point in time is less than two years total. It further should be noted that the employment occurred only after a dismissal of a prior divorce action filed by the Defendant-Respondent as the Plaintiff which dismissal was based upon representations by the husband that he would pursue marital counseling in

order to obtain a reconciliation of the marriage. However, the Plaintiff-Appellant herein demanded that the Defendant-Respondent obtain employment whereby she undertook her present employment having had little or no marketable skills for any type of promising job progression. Thereafter, the Plaintiff-Appellant filed the action herein seeking a dissolution of the marriage of the parties. In light of the relative position of the parties it is apparent that Plaintiff-Appellant got off rather lightly with respect to the alimony award and if anything the Court herein should increase the alimony award.

ISSUE THREE: WHETHER THE APPELLANT PAYING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AT THE RATE OF ONE-HALF OF THOSE INCURRED IS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION BY THE COURT.

Again, a review of the record as a whole, would reflect that the Defendant-Respondent is in a position of very marginal existence which is accomplished only by virtue of her having obtained employment prior to initiation of the divorce action herein by the Plaintiff-Appellant. Based upon the marginal assets available for the Defendant-Respondent to maintain the home it is fitting and proper that the court impose the requirement that the Plaintiff-Appellant contribute to any capital improvements. Failure to do otherwise would result in a deterioration of the home and the Plaintiff-

Appellant's equity in the home as well as that of the Defendant-Respondent.

A review of the circumstances in total as to this issue clearly indicates that there was no abuse of discretion on the part of the Court in making its award herein.

ISSUE FOUR: WHETHER THE FAILURE OF THE COURT TO AWARD INTEREST ON THE EQUITY IN THE HOME IS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION OF THE COURT.

The \$ 8,500.00 deduction to the Defendant-Respondent upon obtaining proceeds from the sale of the marital home is based simply upon the contributions of the parties to the marital assets. In the event that the Plaintiff-Appellant would wish to pay \$ 8,500.00 outright to the Defendant-Respondent and split the proceeds of the house equity at the time of its sale such certainly would be amenable to the Defendant-Respondent. As an observation, it would seem that the Court in its consistency awarded no interest to the Defendant-Respondent on her \$ 8,500.00 contribution award.

There is nothing contained in the record to substantiate any abuse of discretion on the part of the Court in making its determination as to the distribution the equities and responsibilities of the respective parties.

CONCLUSION

The decision of the District Court should be allowed to stand as is with the only consideration to be given by the Supreme Court as to whether or not the alimony award is adequate under the circumstances. Defendant-Respondent submits that the award is proper although somewhat less than might otherwise be anticipated. Picking up on the Plaintiff-Appellant's request that the Court make such modifications as are conscionable and equitable, Defendant-Respondent suggests that an increase in the alimony award would be appropriate and the Defendant-Respondent's costs and attorney's fees herein be awarded.